
1894 

The foundation stone of the present church was laid in 1894, as        
recorded in the service register (above).  Services in the temporary Iron 
Church, which had been opened in 1867, continued while the new 
church was being built. 

The stone was laid by the Bishop of Winchester, Rt Revd Anthony 
Thorold (right). 
Hampshire Record Office: PORTRAIT/T/4. 



1895 

Above right: the church was consecrated by 
the new Bishop, Rt Revd Randall Davidson, 
later Archbishop of Canterbury, on 20th 
November. 

The Revd W E Layton had begun taking  
services on 29th September, and was        
inducted as the first Vicar on 17th            
December. 

Above left: worship began in the new church on 21st July.  
While the arrival of the first Vicar was still awaited, the first 
services were taken by the Revd John Glubb, one of the 
Bishop’s chaplains; he had been taking services in the Iron 
Church.  The consecration, which had been planned for 17th 
July was postponed because Bishop Thorold’s health had   
deteriorated, and he died on the 25th. 



1896 

 

Above right: The new church was formally declared by the Ecclesiastical Commissioners 
to be the Parish Church in substitution for the medieval church, on 5th March.  After 
over 350 years, there could be no doubt that Cuddington was no longer a parish     
without a parish church. 

This photograph shows the organ console in its original 
location in the chancel, with Vic Hoad, Organist from 
1967 to1971, not long before the console was moved to 
the south aisle of the nave. 

Right: the pipe organ, built by 
Henry Willis and Sons (often 
referred to as ’Father Willis’) 
was installed.  The same organ, 
with substantial enlargements 
and modifications, remains in 
use. 

The first Organist to use the 
organ was presumably Miss 
Hughes, who had previously 
played in the Iron Church, and 
was still in post in 1897-8. 



1897 
Also this year: 

A stained glass window in the south aisle showing St James and St John 
was given in memory of G H Madeley. 

The Vicarage was completed. 

The first baptism and weddings in 
the new church took place. 
The first two weddings give a hint of 
the social spectrum in 1890s        
Cuddington.  The first took place on 
April 20th, and the bride was Annie 
Dodge, the daughter of a gardener, 
James Dodge. The Dodge family lived 
at Bellgate Lodge, at the Cheam gate 
to Nonsuch Park, so presumably James 
worked in the Mansion House gardens. 
At various times he also worked as a 
carter and an agricultural labourer, 
while Annie had become a school-
teacher and by 1891 had become 
headteacher of a school in Sussex. Her 
bridegroom, Edward Sanders, was a 
baker from Lancashire.  

At the second wedding, on the next day, the couple came from The Avenue and both had connections with Britain’s overseas interests,  
as did many in The Avenue at that time. The groom was David Thomson, an army captain who had served in Bombay, and his bride was 
Annette Sterndale, whose father was the Governor of St Helena, and also had a house in The Avenue. 



1898 

 

Left: the Chancel screen, with two 
carved angels facing the altar,  was given 
by Charles William Smith ,who had     
already paid much of the cost of the 
church building. 

This painting by Lilian Smith was given 
to the Revd Anne Donaldson when she 
left Cuddington.  Anne had frequently 
featured in a humorous column in the 
parish magazine supposedly written by 
one of the angels, Gertrude, during   
Robert Leach’s editorship. 

 

Noel Gordon Harris, son of C             
Alexander and Constance Harris, was 
baptised on 22nd February  He went on 
to a notable career in mental health, as 
recorded in this obituary. 

Also this year: 

A set of Communion plate was purchased, with donations from many 
members of the congregation. 



1899 

Bruce Steane is listed as Organist in the accounts 
for Easter 1898-Easter 1899.  He wrote a number 
of organ and choral works, including a cantata,   
The Ascension, published in 1895. 

 

Also this year 

William Hume-Rothery, the pioneer behind the            
establishment of the Department of Metallurgy at Oxford 
University, was baptised. 


